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P-50/Z-50 — Schuylerville/Sarasota Springs

The 656th AC&W Squadron began operating AN/FPS-3 and AN/FPS-5 radars from this central
New York site in April 1952. This site assumed coverage from site L-7 in Schenectady. This site was
one of the first to receive an AN/FPS-20 search radar in the spring of 1957. By 1958 the original
radars were gone and operations continued with an AN/FPS-20 and a pair of AN/FPS-6 height-
finder radars. At this time, Sarasota Springs began providing information to the SAGE system. The
search radar subsequently was upgraded in 1961 to become an AN/FPS-65. Major equipment
changes occurred during 1963 with the arrival of an AN/FPS-27 search radar along with AN/FPS-
26A and AN/FPS-90 height-finder radars. In 1964 this site became an ADC/FAA joint-use facility.
The 656th was inactivated in June 1977.

In May 1950 the 656 Aircraft Control and Warning Squadron was formed and placed under the



command of Lt. Col. Edward G. Hillery. The unit then occupied temporary quarters at the
Schenectady General Depot in Schenectady, New York. In September construction was started by
Carl Buhr Company, of New York, on a mountain side in the Adirondacks, overlooking the broad
valley of the Hudson River. The initial construction was a one million dollar project, exclusive of
equipment. Despite the destructive force of a hurricane and severe winter weather, Saratoga
Springs Air Force Station was occupied in March of 1952.

The 656" was assigned to the 32d Air Division (Defense), in February 1952 and a year later to the
4707™ Wing. It operated under the 32" until March 1956 when, due to Geographical
Reorganization of EADF. it was integrated into the 26" Air Division (Defense) and in September
became a part of the 4622 Air Defense Wing (Sage).

656  Schenectady, NY CPS-5, TPS-10A Jul-50 Jun-52 replaced by P-50

History of Schenectady, NY

This Lashup site was activated in 1950. The site used both the AN/CPS-5 and AN/TPS-10A
radars. Operations continued until February 1952 when coverage was assumed by site P-50 at
Schuylerville (Saratoga Springs AFS).

Saratoga Springs AFS, NY
Latitude: 43-00-41 N, Longitude: 073-40-57 W
Call Sign(s): Egg Nog, Wonder, Rocky Road

656  Saratoga Springs AFS, NY
FPS-5; FPS-3/-20/-65; FPS-27; FPS-6,-90; FPS-26A
FPS-27; FPS-90; FPS-26A

Apr-52 Jun-77

BUIC-I (manual). A.K.A. 'Schuylerville' and 'Saratoga AFS.' FAA joint-use in 1964, then became FAA
beacon-only site after closure. Completely deactivated now.

656th Radar Squadron
Saratoga Springs, NY
Saratoga Air Force Station was located about 10 miles southeast of historic Saratoga Springs, NY.

At the Saratoga site, like many SAGE sites with multiple radars, the radar maintenance section
was the largest one on the site. | believe the total military population was around 200 with
perhaps 50 or 60 having a 303X2 AFSC. For example, the FPS-26 alone required over two dozen
technicians for around the clock maintenance coverage. When | arrived on the site in 1963 after
an assignment in Iceland there were three operational radars; the FPS-65 search, an FPS-26
height finder and an FPS-90 height finder.

The FPS-27 was installed but would not be fully operational until 1964 and was then almost



immediately turned over to the FAA. Saratoga was also a BUIC (Back Up Intercept Control ) site.
When | began working at Saratoga, | was put on shift work on the FPS-65 and assigned a partner
named George Chan. We happened to be classmates at Keesler. Back at Keesler, George had
good naturedly ribbed me when he found out | was being sent to a remote duty site in Iceland
and he was going to get a much nicer assignment in Saratoga.

656th Radar Sq (SAGE): assigned 1 Jan 51 at Schenectady, NY, assigned to the 540th AC&W Gp;
transferred to the 32nd AD 6 Feb 52; moved to permanent site at Schuyierville, NY Feb
transferred to 4707th Def Wg 16 Feb 53; site redesignated Saratoga Spgs AFS, NY 1 Dec 53;
transferred to 4622nd AD Wg 18 Oct 56; transferred to Boston ADS 8 Jan 57; redesignated from
AC&W Sq to 656th Radar Sq (SAGE) 15 Dec 58; transferred to 35th AD 1 Apr 66; reassigned to
21st AD 19 Nov 69; redesignated 656. Radar Sq 1 Feb 74; inactivated 30 Jun 77.

On a ridge overlooking the historic Hudson River Valley, approximately ten miles southeast of
Saratoga Springs sets Saratoga AFS, home of the 656 Radar Squadron

Activated originally as the 656 ACWS the unit occupied temporary quarters at the Schenectady
Army Depot in Schenectady, NY utilizing old WW 1l vintage radar equipment. Following
completion of a million dollar construction project, the unit moved to its present location in
Stillwater NY and assumed mission responsibility as a manual direction center under the control
of the 4707 ADW at Otis AFB, MA. In 1956 the unit became part of the 26 AD. In December 1958
the unit was integrated into the SAGE and redesignated the 656 Radar Squadron (SAGE). Manual
control capability was retained until Jul 1965 when the squadron was relieved of responsibility
As a NORAD control center and became a Long Range Radar Site.

Progress in air defense procedures and equipment has caused the site to pass through many
years of growth and expansion in both equipment and manpower. The original AN/FPS-3 search
radar, passed through a full cycle of modernization and finally gave way to high powered AN/FPS-
27. Its companion set a lonely AN/FPS-5 height finder radar was replaced by a pair of AN/FPS-6
height finders one of which was eventually replaced with high powered AN/FPS-26. Further
modernization included expansion of the GATR facilities and the addition of three unmanned gap
filler radar sites.

A great reduction in personnel followed the relinquishment of manual control capability and the
assumption of operational and maintenance responsibility of the FPS-27 search radar by the FAA
under a joint user agreement.
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